

**Exhibit B**

**2011 Oregon Big Game Regulations**

**Supplemental Revised DRAFT OAR**

**September 28, 2010**

Replaces Pg 19 **635-065-0625 (13)(a)** Date change

Replaces Pg 20 **635-065-0625 (17)** – Changed the order of the words.

Replaces Pg 25 **635-065-0720 (8)** – adjustment in language

Replaces Pg 30 **635-065-0760 (z)** - Date change and added language

Replaces Pg 48 and 49 **635-080-0016, 635-080-0021** and **635-080-0023** adjustments to the language to make easier to understand.

**635-065-0625**

**Regulations on State Wildlife Areas, Refuges and Special Areas**

State wildlife areas, refuges and special areas shall be open to hunting during authorized seasons, subject to the following special regulations and exceptions:

- (1) Bear Valley National Wildlife Refuge (Klamath County): Closed to all public entry except walk-in deer hunting prior to November 1.
- (2) Bridge Creek Wildlife Area (Umatilla County): Open to public access and hunting. Motorized vehicle travel restricted to open roads. Entry is by permit only December 1 through April ~~30~~ **14**.
- (3) Cascade Head — Lincoln City Area: The Cascade Head — Lincoln City Area shall be closed to hunting with centerfire rifles, muzzleloaders, or handguns. Hunting shall be restricted to archery and shotguns only during authorized seasons, except for Department approved emergency hunts. Hunters using shotguns for elk shall use slugs (single projectile) only. The Cascade Head — Lincoln City Area boundaries shall be defined as follows: Beginning at the Pacific Ocean and Siletz River mouth, east along the north shoreline of the Siletz River to Drift Cr. Rd. (mile post 1 on Hwy 229); north on Drift Cr. Rd. to Anderson Cr. Rd.; north on Anderson Cr. Rd. to Schooner Cr. Rd.; west on Schooner Cr. Rd. to Forest Rd. 2200; north and east on FR 2200 to FR 1726; west on FR 1726 to FR 2100; northeast on FR 2100 to the power line crossing; north along the power line to State Hwy. 18; west on Hwy 18 to Old Scenic Hwy 101; north on Old Scenic Hwy 101 to Three Rocks Rd.; west on Three Rocks Rd. to U.S. Hwy 101; north on Hwy 101 to FR 1861; west on FR 1861 to Harts Cove trailhead; west on Harts Cove trail to the Pacific Ocean; south along the coastline to the Siletz River, point of beginning.
- (4) Cold Springs Refuge (Umatilla County): The Cold Springs Refuge shall be closed to deer and elk hunting.
- (5) Dean Creek Elk Viewing Area (Douglas County): All Bureau of Land Management lands within or contiguous to BLM lands within T22S R11W (including Spruce Reach Island located adjacent to Hwy. 38 and between the outlets of Koapke and Hinsdale Sloughs) are closed to hunting. Also, other lands located with in the following boundary are closed to hunting during all elk and deer seasons that pertain to this area: beginning at the intersection

of Schofield Rd. and Hwy. 38, south on Schofield Rd. to it's intersection with Hakki Ridge Rd., east on Hakki Ridge Rd. to the crest of Hakki Ridge, east along the crest of Hakki Ridge to it's intersection with the BLM boundary located in T22S, R11W Section 4, easterly along the BLM boundary to Hwy. 38, west on Hwy 38 to point of beginning.

(6) Denman Wildlife Area (Jackson County): The Denman Wildlife Area shall be open to hunting only during game mammal and game bird seasons. Use of rifles and handguns is prohibited at all times.

(7) Dunes National Recreational Area: Use of rifles and handguns is prohibited for all hunting in that portion of the Siuslaw Unit west of Highway 101 and north of Tahkenitch Creek.

(8) North Bank Habitat Management Area (NBHMA; previously known as the Dunning Ranch Area in Douglas County): 6,500 acres located approximately eight miles northeast of Roseburg. Area: All BLM lands located in T25S, R5W, Sections 35,36; T26S, R5W, Sections 1,2,11,12,13,14; T25S, R4W, Sections 31,32,33; T26S, R4W, Sections 4,5,6,7,8,18. This area [~~shall be~~] **is** closed to all big game hunting except for and during controlled hunts specific to the management area NBHMA by hunters possessing a controlled hunt tag for the area. Elk hunting will be allowed by hunters who possess a valid NBHMA controlled hunt tag in addition to a valid elk tag. **The use of bait for hunting game mammals is prohibited on NBHMA.** All BLM lands located in T25S, R5W, Sections 35, 36; T26S, R5W, Sections 1, 2, 11, 12, 13, 14; T25S, R4W, Sections 31,32, 33; T26S, R4W, Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 18 (6,500 acres located approximately 8 miles northeast of Roseburg).

(9) E.E. Wilson Wildlife Area (Benton County): This area is open to deer hunting during authorized seasons, except closed to bow hunting for deer when juvenile pheasant hunts are in progress. Rabbit hunting is permitted from November 1 through February each year. Hunting is by permit only. Permits are available at area headquarters and shall be filled out and returned each day hunted. Use of rifles, handguns, and crossbows shall be prohibited at all times.

(10) Elkhorn Wildlife Area (Baker/Union counties): Closed to all entry December 1 through April 10 annually. The Roth Tract is closed to all hunting. The Roth Tract is closed to public entry except by entry permit; an entry permit is required at all times of the year.

(11) Enterprise Wildlife Area (Wallowa County): Open to hunting seven days a week. No entry permit is required. Posted portions of the area lying south of the Union Pacific Railroad line and the entire Marr Tract are closed to all hunting.

(12) Fern Ridge Wildlife Area (Lane County): Open to black-tailed deer hunting during authorized seasons; see current Oregon Game Bird Regulations for open areas. A free daily hunting permit is required for East Coyote, West Coyote, Fisher Butte, Royal Amazon and Kirk Park units. Permits are available at check stations located at area access points. Hunters are limited to shotguns and archery equipment only. The discharging of rifles and handguns within the wildlife area is prohibited.

(13) William Finley National Wildlife Refuge (Benton County):

(a) Portions of the refuge shall be open to deer hunting August ~~[28]~~ **27** through September ~~[26, 2010]~~ **25, 2011** under the regulations for bowhunting seasons.

**(b) Portions of the refuge are open to deer hunting by hunters with a 615 controlled hunt tag using only archery equipment during September 1 – September ~~[25]~~ 26, 2011 and using shotguns or archery from September ~~[26]~~ 27 – October 31, 2011.**

~~[(b)]~~ **(c)** Portions of the refuge shall be open to **deer** hunting ~~[for buck deer]~~ October ~~[2]~~ **1** through October 31, ~~[2010]~~ **2011** under regulations for the general western Oregon deer buck season. Use of rifles **or muzzleloaders** is prohibited.

~~[(e)]~~ **(d)** All hunters shall obtain a refuge permit and check in and out of the refuge daily. Information on open areas and special regulations are available at the refuge.

(14) Gods Valley Wildlife Area (Clatsop County): Vehicles shall be restricted to **travel only on** county roads.

(15) Government Island State Recreation Area (Multnomah County): Use of rifles, handguns, and shotguns with slugs or buckshot, and bows is prohibited at all times.

(16) Irrigon, Coyote Springs, Power City, and Boardman wildlife management areas (Morrow and Umatilla counties): Use of rifles and handguns ~~[are]~~ **is** prohibited at all times.

(17) Hart Mountain National Antelope Refuge (Lake County): Portions of the refuge shall be open for hunting as prescribed under chukar season, controlled pronghorn antelope and bighorn sheep hunts, deer bowhunting season, and muzzleloader deer season. The refuge is open for pronghorn antelope **Mandatory Reporting Incentive tag holders, and pronghorn**

**antelope** and bighorn sheep auction and raffle tag holders but is closed for Access and Habitat deer and elk auction and raffle **and Mandatory Reporting Incentive** tag holders.

(18) Heppner Regulated Hunt Area: open fires and camping prohibited in posted areas. Approximately 63 square miles in Townships 2, 3, 4 , and 5 South, Ranges 25, 26, 27 and 28 East;

(19) Jewell Meadows Wildlife Area (Clatsop County): The Beneke Tract and the Humbug Tract shall be open to hunting only during authorized game mammal and game bird seasons. The Beneke Tract is closed to all public entry during any open Saddle Mountain elk season. It is unlawful to shoot rifles and bows from or across open fields during any open Saddle Mountain Unit or Wilson Unit elk seasons. The Fishhawk Tract is closed to public access. Posted lands of Cavenham Forest Industries, Inc., in T5N, R7W, Sections 2, 3 and 4, 9, 10 and 11 and T6N, R7W, Sections 33 and 34, are closed to all hunting. All areas posted as Refuge are closed to public access. Entry for other purposes is only by permit obtained at the Jewell Wildlife Area Headquarters.

(20) John Day Fossil Beds National Monument: Those parts of the National Monument in the Grizzly, Biggs, Fossil, and Northside Units are closed to all hunting and trapping.

(21) John Day River Refuge: **Includes** all land within 1/4 mile of the John Day River mean high water line from the Columbia River upstream to Thirty Mile Creek. **Within this area, from the Columbia Rvr upstream to Rock Cr,** the area shall be open to hunting of upland game birds during authorized seasons only between September 1 and October 31 annually but closed to all waterfowl hunting. **The remaining area from Rock Cr upstream to Thirty Mile Cr is open to the hunting of all game birds during authorized seasons.** Hunting of big game is allowed during authorized seasons.

(22) Klamath Wildlife Area (Klamath County): This area is closed to all deer hunting.

(23) Klamath Marsh National Wildlife Refuge: **This area is** closed to **all** deer and elk hunting.

(24) Ladd Marsh Wildlife Area (Union County): All land north and east of Foothill Road [~~shall be~~] **is** closed to all deer and elk hunting except during controlled youth deer hunts and closed to all rifle and handgun shooting. All lands west of Foothill Road shall be closed to all entry January 1–April 10, except by permit.

- (25) Long Ranch (Linn County): Forty-eight acres in T13S, R4E, and S32 [~~shall be~~] **are** closed to all hunting.
- (26) Lost Valley Ranch RHA: Open to public access and hunting **from** August 1 to March 31. Camping, horse back riding, and open fires are prohibited. Closed to all motor vehicle use unless posted otherwise. (Approximately 9 square miles in T5 and 6S, and R22 and 23E).
- (27) Lower Deschutes Wildlife Area: Open to hunting big game, game birds, and waterfowl during authorized seasons. Discharge of firearms prohibited the remainder of the year. Access by foot, boat or bicycle only.
- (28) Malheur National Wildlife Refuge (Harney County): Portions of the refuge in Blitzen Valley lying west of State Highway 205 [~~shall be~~] **is** open during authorized rifle and bow deer seasons.
- (29) McDonald Forest-Dunn Forest Area (Benton County): The area is closed to all hunting except during controlled hunts as authorized by the commission.
- (30) McKay Creek Refuge (Umatilla County): This refuge is closed to deer and elk hunting.
- (31) Metolius Wildlife Refuge (Jefferson County). All hunting, injuring, taking, killing, or destroying any wild bird or mammal on public land is prohibited on public lands within T12 and T13S, R9E, bounded by USFS road 1420 and 1419 on the west; road 1400 on the south and east; and road 1420-400, Metolius River, and posted boundary from the Metolius River to road 1400 on the north (approximately five square miles). 36 CFR 261.58(v).
- (32) Mill Creek Watershed (Umatilla County): This watershed is closed to all access and hunting except by holders of a Mill Creek Watershed controlled elk tag and a Forest Service entry permit.
- (33) Newberry Crater Wildlife Refuge (Deschutes County). All hunting, injuring, taking, killing, or destroying any wild bird or mammal [~~on public land~~] is prohibited on public lands within the rim of Newberry Crater in: T21S, R12E; T22S, R12E; T21S, R13E; T22S, R13E (approximately 15 square miles).
- (34) Rimrock Springs Wildlife Area (Grizzly Unit): This area is closed to all hunting.
- (35) Rogue River Area:
- (a) All land within one mile of the Rogue River between Grave Creek and Lobster Creek is closed to bear hunting.

(b) All land within 1/4 mile of the Rogue River in the wild river section from Grave Creek downstream to Watson Creek is closed to all hunting except during authorized seasons.

(36) Saddle Mountain Unit (White-tailed Deer Area): That portion of Saddle Mountain Wildlife Unit north of Burlington Northern railroad tracks to Astoria is closed to all deer hunting.

(37) Sauvie Island Wildlife Area (Multnomah-Columbia counties): This area shall be open to bowhunting for black-tailed deer [~~August 28 through September 26, 2010~~] **August 26 through September 25, 2011**, except Oak Island (Multnomah-Columbia Cos) is closed to deer hunting and Sturgeon LK Refuge is closed to all hunting. Daily permits are required. Hunters shall check in and out daily. This area shall be closed to deer hunting after [~~September 26, 2010~~] **September 25, 2011**. Closed to hunting for furbearers, predators, unprotected and protected wildlife (except black-tail deer and game birds). Use of rifles, handguns and crossbows shall be prohibited at all times. Parking permits are required.

(38) Phillip W. Schneider Wildlife Area (Grant County): Open to public access and hunting **April 15 through January 31**. Motorized vehicle travel restricted to open roads. Some roads closed seasonally from December 1 through April [~~30~~] **14. Entry by permit only February 1 through April 14** [~~or year-round~~]; including BLM land within the exterior boundaries of the Wildlife Area.

(39) Snake River Islands (Malheur County): Closed to hunting with centerfire rifles and centerfire handguns.

(40) South Slough National Estuarine Reserve: Specific areas are closed to hunting due to public health and safety. Contact reserve headquarters office for specific closures.

(41) Starkey Experimental Forest Enclosure (Union County): That portion of The Starkey Experimental Forest within the eight foot **high** elk-proof fence enclosure is closed to all hunting during deer and elk season except for persons possessing a controlled hunt tag for the area. A posted 1/4 mile buffer zone on the National Forest lands surrounding the enclosure is closed to all hunting with a centerfire rifle or bow. The enclosure is open to deer and elk hunting only by permit during controlled hunts. The main study area is open to hunting of other species during authorized seasons. The 12-foot right-of-way along each side of all eight foot-high perimeter and internal game fences is closed to all motorized travel. Public entry is allowed only through the main gate. The Experimental Forest is closed to all public entry

during the winter closure, which runs from the day after the controlled antlerless elk hunt until May 1 annually. Access and Habitat auction or raffle tag holders are not eligible to hunt in the Starkey Experimental Forest enclosure.

(42) Summer Lake Wildlife Area (Lake County): Open to public access and hunting during authorized mule deer and game bird hunting seasons. Closed to deer hunting during any pheasant, quail or waterfowl hunting seasons and posted refuge areas are closed to hunting. Motorized vehicle travel restricted to open roads. Some roads may be closed seasonally from March 15–August 15 and seven days prior to and during waterfowl hunting seasons. Hunters must obtain a daily hunting permit and check out at the end of the day. Permits and Area maps are available at Headquarters (1.3 mi. south of the town of Summer Lake). It is unlawful to discharge firearms except during deer and game bird hunting seasons or by permit. Centerfire rifles and handguns are prohibited for deer hunting.

(43) Umatilla Refuge (Morrow County): This refuge shall be closed to deer and elk hunting except during controlled hunts specific to the refuge and emergency hunts as provided in OAR chapter 635, division 078.

(44) Wallowa Lake (Wallowa County): All land on or within 1/4 mile of the Wallowa River from Wallowa Lake upstream to the falls and within 1/4 mile along the west side of Wallowa Lake from the Wallowa Lake State Park to the Wallowa River outlet is closed to all big game hunting.

(45) Wenaha Wildlife Area (Union County): Open to public access and hunting. Motorized vehicle travel restricted to open roads.

(46) Willamette River Greenway Corridor: Hunting is permitted with shotguns or bows and arrows only during authorized season on Willamette River Greenway parcels, except in those parcels where hunting is prohibited.

(47) White River Wildlife Area: Open to hunting during authorized seasons.



**635-065-0720**

**Bows and Arrows**

Hunters shall use:

- (1) Any long, recurve, or compound bow with 40-pound or heavier pull rating to hunt pronghorn antelope, black bear, cougar (mountain lion), or deer.
- (2) Any long, recurve, or compound bow to hunt western gray squirrels.
- (3) Any long, recurve, or compound bow with a 50-pound or heavier pull rating to hunt bighorn sheep, Rocky Mountain goat, or elk.
- (4) Only unbarbed fixed position blade broadheads at least 7/8-inch wide to hunt game mammals other than western gray squirrel. Possession of moveable blade broadheads is prohibited when hunting game mammals, except western gray squirrels may be hunted with moveable blade broadheads.
- (5) A long, recurve, or compound bow and shall not possess any crossbow while hunting within an authorized bowhunting area or season **unless they possess a Crossbow Special Use Permit issued by the Department.**
- (6) Only a long, recurve, or compound bow during any authorized pronghorn antelope, deer or elk bowhunting season to hunt pronghorn antelope, deer, or elk **unless they possess a Crossbow Special Use Permit issued by the Department.**
- (7) For hunting seasons designated as bowhunting, hunters shall only use the bows legal for the species being hunted. Bows may be used during ~~[controlled antlerless deer seasons. Bows shall not be used during]~~ any designated rifle hunt.
- (8) Hunters shall not use any electronic device(s) attached to bow or **arrow with the exception of lighted arrow nocks and cameras. Any such arrow nock or camera must not include ~~no~~ any additional functions such as transmitters or devices that project[ing] a beam to the target.**
- (9) Hunters shall not use any device secured to or supported by the bow for the purpose of maintaining the bow at full draw (Persons unable to comply because of a disability may be eligible for a temporary permit from the Department).
- (10) Hunters shall not use any device secured to or supported by a bow's riser which supports or guides an arrow from a point rearward of a bow's brace height (i.e. the position of the bows string when the bow is undrawn).

**(635-065-0760**

**Other Restrictions)**

- (o) Lower Klamath Hills: Permanent Closure -- That part of the Klamath Unit as follows: 3 square miles in Township 40 South, Range 9 East;
- (p) Goodlow Mountain Area Closure: December 1 through March 31 annually -- That part of the Klamath Unit as follows: 17 square miles in Townships 38 and 39 South, Ranges 12 and 13 East;
- (q) Sun Creek: November 1 through June 30 annually -- That part of the Sprague Unit as follows: 14 square miles in Township 32 South, Ranges 6 and 7 1/2 East;
- (r) Fox Butte: Three days prior to the opening of controlled buck deer season through the close of the controlled buck deer season -- That part of the Paulina Unit as follows: 230 square miles in Townships 20, 21, 22, 23, and 24 South, Ranges 14, 15, and 16 East;
- (s) Timbers: Permanent Closure -- That part of the Paulina Unit as follows: 25 square miles in Townships 23 and 24 South, Ranges 9 and 10 East;
- (t) Rager: Three days prior to the opening of controlled buck deer rifle season through the close of antlerless elk rifle season -- That part of the Ochoco Unit as follows: 352 square miles south of U.S. Highway 26 and west of the South Fork John Day River.
- (u) White River Wildlife Area: December 1 through March 31 annually -- That part of the White River Unit as follows: 59 square miles along the eastern edge of the Mt. Hood National Forest in the southern half of the White River Unit;
- (v) Lower Deschutes: Permanent Closure -- That part of the Biggs Unit as follows: 12 square miles along lower 17 miles of Deschutes River except the county access road to Kloan;
- (w) Murderers Creek-Flagtail: Three days prior to the opening of [~~controlled buck~~] **the archery** deer **and elk** [~~rifle~~] seasons through the close of controlled buck deer rifle season and from three days prior to the controlled Rocky Mountain bull elk first season through the Rocky Mountain bull elk second season -- That part of the Murderers Creek Unit as follows: 185 square miles in Townships 13, 14, 15, 16, and 17 South, Ranges 26, 27, 28, and 29 East;
- (x) Camp Creek: Three days prior to opening of controlled buck deer rifle season through the close of controlled buck deer rifle season and from three days prior to the controlled Rocky Mountain bull elk first season through the Rocky Mountain bull elk second season -- That

part of the Northside Unit as follows: 54 square miles in Townships 10, 11, and 12 South, Ranges 31, 32, and 33 East.

(y) Heppner Regulated Hunt Area: Year-round, unless posted otherwise. That part of the Heppner Unit as follows: Approximately 63 square miles in Townships 2, 3, 4, and 5 South, Ranges 25, 26, 27, and 28 East;

(z) Bridge Creek Wildlife Area: December 1 through April ~~30~~ **14** annually **except by permit**-- That part of the Ukiah Unit as follows: 20 square miles in Townships 5 and 6 south, Ranges 31 and 32 East in the Southwest corner of Ukiah Unit;

**DIVISION 080  
WILDLIFE UNITS**

**635-080-0016****Santiam Unit**

The Santiam Unit, number 16, is that area beginning at Lebanon; north on Brewster Road to Lacombe Road; east on Lacombe Road to Kowitz Road; north on Kowitz Road to Baptist Church Drive; west on Baptist Church Drive to Richardson Gap Road; north on Richardson Gap Road to State Highway 226; northeast on State Highway 226 to Lyons; north to Mehama; west on State Highway 22 to Cascade Highway near Stayton; north on Cascade Highway to State Highway 213 at Silverton; northeast on State Highway 213 to State Highway 211; northeast on State Highway 211 to Sandy; north on Teneyck Road to Sandy River; northwest down Sandy River to state line in Columbia River; northeast along state line to Multnomah-Hood River County line; southeast along Multnomah-Hood River County line to Lolo Pass; southeast along Pacific Crest Trail to Barlow Pass; west on Highway 35 to Highway 26; southeast on Highway 26 to junction of Highway 216; west and then south along the west boundary of The Confederate Tribes of Warm Springs Indian Reservation (CTWSRO) (McQuinn Strip line) to summit of Mt. Jefferson; south along the west CTWSRO boundary and the Cascade crest (Jefferson/Linn Co. line) to the junction of [the with] the Pacific Crest National Scenic Trail (PCT) in Township 11 South Range 8 East Sec 17 then south on PCT to U.S. Highway 20/126 at Santiam Pass.; PCT west on U.S. Highway 20 to Lebanon; point of beginning. (The McQuinn Strip portion of the White River Unit and the Warm Springs Indian Reservation was closed to public hunting September 21, 1992 until further notice).

Stat. Auth.: ORS 496.012, ORS 496.138, ORS 496.146 & ORS 496.162

Stats. Implemented: ORS 496.012, ORS 496.138, ORS 496.146 & ORS 496.162

**635-080-0021****Indigo Unit**

The Indigo Unit, number 21, is that area beginning at Oakridge; southeast on State Highway 58 to Pacific Crest Trail; south along Pacific Crest Trail to State Highway 138; north and

west on State Highway 138 to Toketee junction; north on Toketee Road to North Umpqua River; west along North Umpqua River to Dixonville-Albany main power transmission line; north on Dixonville-Albany main power transmission line to Shoestring Road; east on Shoestring Road .8-mile to London Road; north on London Road **and South 6<sup>th</sup> Street** to Interstate Highway 5; north on Interstate Highway 5 to State Highway 58; southeast on State Highway 58 to Oakridge, point of beginning.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 496.012, ORS 496.138, ORS 496.146 & ORS 496.162

Stats. Implemented: ORS 496.012, ORS 496.138, ORS 496.146 & ORS 496.162

### **635-080-0023**

#### **Melrose Unit**

The Melrose Unit, number 23, is that area beginning at Dixonville power substation; south along Dixonville-Nickel Mountain main power transmission line to State Highway 227 at a point approximately two miles west of Days Creek; southwest on State Highway 227 to Canyonville; south on Interstate Highway 5, 3/4-mile to Dixonville-Nickel Mountain main power transmission line; west on Dixonville-Nickel Mountain main power transmission line to Southern Pacific railroad tracks adjacent to the Nickel Mountain Road junction; southwest along SPRR tracks to the Union Creek Road; north on Union Creek Road through Horse Prairie and Olalla Creek Road to Tenmile; north on Reston and Flournoy Valley roads to Melrose; north on Melrose-Umpqua Road to the Umpqua River at Umpqua; north along the Umpqua River to State Highway 38 at Elkton; east on State Highway 38 to Drain; northeast on State Highway 99 to Curtin; northeast on Interstate 5 to **South 6<sup>th</sup> Street, south on South 6<sup>th</sup> Street to** London Road; south on London Road to Shoestring Road; west .8-mile on Shoestring Road to the Albany-Dixonville main power transmission line; south along Albany-Dixonville main power transmission line to Dixonville, point of beginning.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 496.012, ORS 496.138, ORS 496.146 & ORS 496.162

Stats. Implemented: ORS 496.012, ORS 496.138, ORS 496.146 & ORS 496.162